
N. A. SHAH ASSOCIATES LLP 
Chartered Accountants 

Independent Auditors' Report 

To, 
The Members of 
IVletro Athleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited} 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Metro Athleisure Limited ("the Company"), 
Which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31st March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the 
Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the material accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (herein referred to as the "financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
accompanying financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as 
amended ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 3151 March 2024, the loss and total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act Our responsibilities under thnc;P Strinrlrirrls rirP forthPr 
described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements 
and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard . 
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Independent Auditors' Report (continued) 

Management's responsibility for the financial statements 

lhe Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair 
View of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows 
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
ofthe Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process . 

Auditor's responsibility 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this 
financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higherthan for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of 
Directors. 

~ 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and the Board of Directors use of the go· . g~ . 
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Independent Auditors' Report (continued) 

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Cornpany's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

Other matters 

The figures for the year ended 31st March 2023 are based on the financial statements that were audited 
by the erstwhile auditors whose report expressed an unmodified opinion. Our opinion is not modified in 
respect of this matter. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure 1" 
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3} of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in 
agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2021; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2024 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31'1 March 
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(f} 
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"Annexure 2" to this report. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting; 

(g) The Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year ended 31st March 2024 
accordingly provisions of section 197 of the Act read with schedule V to the Act in respect of 
managerial remuneration are not applicable. Therefore, reporting as required by Section 197(16) 
of the Act is not applicable to the Company; 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its 
financial statements - Refer note 26 of the financial statements; 

ii . The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses; 

iii . There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company; 

iv . a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or 
any other sources or kind offunds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material 
misstatement. Also refer Note 48 of the financial statements. 

v . Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of 
accounts using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) 
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from pt April 2023. 

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting 
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transacti9n \'SS;f. 
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Independent Auditors' Report (continued) 

recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any 
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with. 

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from pt April 
2023, reporting under Rule ll(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on 
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not 
applicable for the financial year ended 3pt March 2024. 

vi. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company. 

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP 

Partner 
Membership No.: 118991 
UDIN: 24118991BKFQUY3805 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 20th May 2024 
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditors' Report for the year ended 31st March, 2024 
[Referred to in point 1 under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements" of our report 
of even date] 

(i) In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and Intangible Assets: 

a) A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 

quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details of 

right-to-use assets. 

B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, our comments on clause 

(i)(a)(B) is not applicable. 

b) The Company has a regular program for conducting physical verification of its property, plant 

and equipment and right-to-use assets to cover all the assets at periodical intervals. In our 

opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the 

Company and the nature of its assets. Based on the program for physical verification, assets 

were verified in the current year. According to the information and explanations given to us, 

no discrepancies were noticed in such verification. 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, all the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the 
name of the Company (erstwhile name of the Company) as at the balance sheet date. 

d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use 
assets) during the year end. Further, there are no intangible assets in the books of the 
Company. 

e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company as on 3pt March 
2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 
and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) a) Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 

management and in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the 

management is appropriate; discrepancies noticed were less than 10% for each class of inventory. 

b) There are no borrowings availed by the Company from Bank and Financial Institutions. Thus, 

paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

(iii) The Company has not made any investments, provided any guarantee or security, granted any 

loans or advances in the nature of loan, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability 

partnerships or any other parties. Therefore, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company. 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or provided guarantees or security or made any 

investments to the parties covered under section 185 of the Act during the year. During the year 

there are no investments, loans, guarantees or security provided to parties, hence our comments 

on compliance under Section 186 of the Act does not arise. 
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditors' Report for the year ended 31st March, 2024 
[Referred to in point 1 under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements" of our report 
of even date] 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from 

the public within the meaning of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of 

Section 73 to 76 of the Act, any other relevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed 

thereunder. We are informed that no order relating to the Company has been passed by the 

Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or 

any other Tribunal. 

(vi) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Central Government has not 

prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in 

respect of operations carried out by the Company. Therefore, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not 

applicable to the Company. 

(vii) In respect of statutory dues: 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 

of records of the Company, in respect of amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account, the 

Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and 

services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty 

of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues as applicable to the 

Company have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities during 

the year. There are no undisputed statutory dues payable in respect to the above statutes, 

outstanding as at 31st March, 2024, for a period of more than six months from the date they 

became payable. 

b) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service tax, provident fund, 

employees state Insurance, income-tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory dues which 

have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows: 

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum where Remarks, if 

Statute the dues (Rs. in lakhs) which the dispute is any 

amount pending 

relates 

Income Tax Penalty 24 AV 2017-18 CIT (Appeals) NA 

Act, 1961 levied u/s 

270A 

Note: As per traces (Income Tax portal) there is outstanding demand of Rs. 8 lakhs (excluding 

interest) against which the Company is in the process offiling forthe rectification and the Company 

does not expect any cash outflow. Accordingly, the Company has not considered this as contingent 
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditors' Report for the year ended 31st March, 2024 
[Referred to in point 1 under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements" of our report 
of even date] 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given by the management and based on the 

procedures carried out during the course of our audit, we have not come across any transactions 

not recorded in the books of account, which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during 

the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

(ix) a) There are no borrowings availed by the Company from Bank and Financial Institutions. Thus, 

paragraph 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit 

procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or 

financial institution or government or any other lender. 

c) The Company has not obtained any term loans during the year and there are no outstanding 

term loans at the beginning of the year. Therefore, paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable 

to the Company. 

d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by 

us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no 

funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Therefore, 

paragraph 3{ix)(e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(x) a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any 

money by way of an initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during 

the year ended 31st March 2024. Therefore, paragraph 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 

placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the 

year. Therefore, paragraph 3{x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xi) a) No fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during 

the year. Accordingly, clause (xi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

b) No report under section 143(12) of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 

prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 

Government, during the year and upto the date of this report. 
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditors' Report for the year ended 31 51 March, 2024 
[Referred to in point 1 under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements" of our report 
of even date] 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to 

the Company. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 

records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 188 of the 

Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial 

statements as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards (refer note 31 of the 

financial statements). Further, Section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company. 

(xiv) a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the 

size and the nature of its business. 

b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company 

during the year and till the date of our audit report, in determining the nature, timing and extent 

of our audit procedures. 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the 

Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected 

with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies /\ct, 2013 are not 

applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act, 1934. Therefore, paragraph 3(xvi)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 

Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company. 

c) Based on the information and explanation given to us and details of registered Cl Cs reflected on 

RBI portal, the Group has no CICs. 

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash loss of Rs. 527 lakhs (only continuing operations) during the 

financial year ended 3pt March 2024 and Rs. 5,319 lakhs (both continuing & discontinuing 

operations) in the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been resignation of statutory auditor during the year. Further, as per information and 

explanations provided to us, no issues, objections, or concerns were raised by the erstwhile 

auditors. 

(xix) 

other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the 
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditors' Report for the year ended 31st March, 2024 
[Referred to in point 1 under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements" of our report 
of even date] 

Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 

assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 

uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its 

liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one 

year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 

viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date 

of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling 

due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company 

as and when they fall due. 

(xx) The Company is not required to spend on CSR as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 . 

Therefore, paragraph 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xxi) The Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements. Therefore, paragraph 

3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm's Registration No.: 116560W /W100149 

Partner 
Membership No. 118991 
UDIN: 24118991BKFQUY3805 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 20th May 2024 
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Annexure 2 to Independent Auditor's Report for the year ended 31st March 2024 
[Referred to point 2(f) under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements" 
of our report of even date.] 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act") 

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Metro Athleisure Limited 
("the Company") as of 31'1 March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 

31'1 March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 

the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note"), issued by the Institute of Chartered 
/\ccountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 

assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and the and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to the financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
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Annexure 2 to Independent Audito.r's Report for the year ended 31st March 2024 
[Referred to point 2(f) under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory requirements" 
of our report of even date.] 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the financial 
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management 
and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or traud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No.: 116560W /W100149 
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Partner .__,.,.,7,,, ::..<:.. 
'TrE ~'" Membership No.: 118991 REo l\CCOUNI~ 

UDIN: 24118991BKFQUY3805 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 20th May 2024 



Metro Athleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 

-

Particulars 
-
A ASSETS 
1 Non-Current as.sets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 

lb) Goodwlll 

le) Right of use Assets 

(d) Other intangible assets 

(e) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 

(ii) Other financial assets 

(f) Non-current tax assets 

Total Non - Current Assets 

2 Current Assets 
(a) Inventories 

(b) Financial assets 
(i) Trade receivables 

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 

(iii) Other financial assets 

(c) Other current assets 

Assets Held for sale 
Total Current Assets 

Total Assets 

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

1 EQUITY 

(a) Equity Share capital 

(b) Other Equity 

Total Equity 

2 Non-Current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(b) Provisions 

(c) Lease liability 

(d) Other non-current liabilities 

Total Non Current liabilities 

3 Current liabilities 

l•l Fi11dt1Lidl LidlJililit'~ 

(i) Borrowings 
(II) Trade payables: 

a. Due of Micro and small enterprises 

b. Due of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Lease Liability 

(c) Other current liabilities 

(d) Provisions . 
Total Current Liabilities 

Total Equity and liabilities 

See accompanying notes from 1 to 50 forming part of the financial statements 

It Aggregate value is less than" 0.50 lakhs 

As per our report of even date attached 

For N. A. Shah Associates llP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.116560W/Wl00149 

Bhavin Kapadia 

Partner 

Membership No: 118991 

Mumbai 

Dated: May 20, 2024 

fl' in lakhsl 
As at Asat 

Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

!Audit""' IAuAi+adl 

3 25 855 

- 516 

36A - 1,683 

4 1,264 

5 1 1 

6 11 399 

27E 25 38 

62 4,756 

8 743 5,153 

9 413 4,871 

10 121 106 

6 269 7 

7 494 1,575 

3A 9 
2,049 11,712 

2,112 16,468 

11 9,783 9,783 

12 (10,319) 115,615) 

(536) (5,832) 

13 1,450 16,037 

16 1 45 

15 1,321 

17 341 

1,451 17,744 

13 862 

18 63 663 

187 2,742 

14 - (1) 

15 - 656 

19 85 436 

16 0 60 

1,197 4,556 

2,112 16,468 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Metro Athleisure limited (Formerly known as Cravatex 

Brands limited) 
[CIN: U51909MH2016PLC288788] 

l~ 
Kaushal Parekh 

Director and CFO 

(DIN No. 09794399) 

Krutika Mohan Rane 

Company Secretary 

Mumbai 

Dated: May 20, 2024 

Director 

(DIN No. 06701972) 



Metro Athleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 

Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Particulars 

1 Income 
Revenue from operations 
Other Income 

Total Income 

2 Expenses 

Purchase of stock-in-trade 
Change in Inventories of stock-in-trade-Decrease 

Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Other expenses 
Total expenses 

3 loss for the year before tax 

4 Tax expense : 
Current tax 

Deferred tax 
Earlier year tax written off I (back) 

5 loss for the year 

Discontinued operations 

Loss from discontinued operations 

Loss from discontinued operations after tax 

loss for the year 

6 Other Comprehensive Income: 
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit or Loss : 
(i) Re-measurement of the net defined benefit plans 

7 Total Comprehensive Income for the year 

Earnings per equity share - continuing operations 

Basic Earnings per share (in ~) 
Diluted Earnings per share (in ~) 

Earnings per equity share - discontinued operations 

Basic Earnings per share (in ~) 
Diluted Earnings per share (in ~) 

Earnings per equity share - continuing & discontinued operations 

Basic Earnings per share (in ~) 

Diluted Earnings per share (in~) 

Note 

20 
21 

22 
23 
24 

3, 4 and36 
25 

27 

39 

39 

12 

28 

28 

28 

(~in lakhs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

1,296 5,079 

214 SS 

1,510 5.134 

375 3,386 

618 65S 

189 1,110 

60 267 

79 127 

756 1,900 

2,077 7,445 

(567) (2,311) 

. -
- -
52 (9) 

(619) (2,302) 

- (5,735) 

- (5,735) 

(619) (8,037) 

- (24) 

(619) (8,061) 

(15.16) (64.34) 
(15.16) (24.81) 

- (160.30) 
- {61.82) 

(15.16) (224.64) 

(15.16) (86.63) 

See accompanying notes from 1 to 50 forming part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 
For N. A. Shah Associates llP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.116560W/W100149 

Bhavin Kapadia 

Partner 
Membership No: 118991 

Mumbai 
Dated: May 20, 2024 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Metro Athleisure limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands 

limited) 

[CIN: U51909 016PLC288788] 

Kaushal Parekh 

Director and CFO 

(DIN No. 09794399) 

Krutika Mohan Rane 

Company Secretary 

Mumbai 
Dated: May 20, 2024 

Director 
(DIN No. 06701972) 



Metro Athleisure limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 
Statement of Cash Flows 

for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Particulars 

A Cash flow from operating activities 

Loss before tax 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Interest income 

(Gain) I Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 

Profit on sale of investments 

Allowance for doubtful debts 

Loss/ (gain) on debt portion of financ:ials instrument measured at FVTPL 

Finance Cost 

(Gain) on lease liability 

Operating loss before working capital changes 

Adjustments for: 

Decrease in Trade Receivables 

Decrease/(lncrease) in Inventories 

Decrease in Loans 

(Increase) in non-current and current assets 

(Decrease ) in Trad e payab les 

(Oecrease)/lncrease in non-current and current liabilities 

1ncrease/(Decrease) in provis ions 

Cash used in operations 

Direct taxes (refund) (net) 

Net cash used in operating activities 

8 Cash flow from investing activities 

Purchases of Property, plant and equipment 

Proceeds from Sale of Property, plant and equ ipment 

Maturity of fixed deposits 

Proceeds from sale of investment 

Interest received 

Net cash generated from investing activities 

c cash flow from financing activities 

Repayment of current borrowings 

Interest paid 

Proceeds from long term borrowings 

Repayment of lease liabilities 

Net cash (used I/generated from financin~ activities 

Net increase/( decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the period (A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalents (opening balance) 

Cash and cash equivalents (closing balance) (Ref note 10) 

Notes: 

(~ in l.akh•) 
For tile yeor ended For tne year enu .... 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

IAudltedl (Audited I 

(568) (8,047) 

79 1,833 

(1) (99) 

(103) 10 
. (3) 

30 777 

(7) 238 

60 1,097 

(63) 

(573) (4,194) 

1,955 1,110 

617 (74) 

. 21 

(1,250) (246) 

(1,122) (1,943) 

(105) 751 

123 (149) 

(355) (4,724) 

(39) (6) 

(394) (4,718) 

. (44) 

471 4 

1 

. 459 

1 1 

472 421 

(6,087) 

(60) (1,097) 

11,917 

(5) (760) 

(fi') 3,973 

15 (326) 

106 432 

121 106 

1 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under "indirect method 11 as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard-7 on Statement on Cash Flows. 

2 M ovement of financia l llab11ltl es ; 

Partlculars 

Lease liabilities - non cash changes arising out of unwinding & additions of liabilities 

Borrowings - non cash changes arising out of de merger and fair valuation 

Particulars 

Lease liabilities - non cash changes arising out of unwinding & additions of liabilities 

Borrowings - non cash changes arising out of de merger and fair valuation 

The accompanying notes are an integra l part of these financia l statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.116560W/Wl00149 

Bhavin Kapadia 

Partner 

Membership No: 118991 

Mumbai 

Dated : May 20, 2024 

April 1,2023 

1,977 

16,037 

April 1, 2022 

2,451 

16,311 

cash Inflows I Non cash changes 
March 31, 2024 

(outflowsl I dem....,er 

(5) (1,972) (0) 

(13,726) 2,311 

Cash inftows I 
Non cash changes March 31, 2023 

(outflows) 

(1,065) 591 1,977 

5.830 (6,104) 16,037 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Metro Athleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex 

Brands Limited) 

(CIN : US1909 

Kaushal Parekh 

Director and CFO 

(DIN No. 09794399) 

Krutika Mohan Rane 

Company Secretary 

Mumbai 

Dated: May 20. 2024 

Director 

(DIN No. 06701972) 



1 Company Overview 

Metro Athleisure Limited (formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) ("the Company"), is a 
Public Limited Company. The Company was incorporated on 22 December 2016 in India having its 
registered office at 401, Zillion, 4th Floor, LBS Marg, CST Junction, Kurla (West), Mumbai 400 070. 

On 23 March 2017 the Company purchased FILA and FITNESS undertaking under slump sale, 

pursuant to the Slump Sale Agreement with its Holding Company M/s Cravatex Limited. 

During FY 2019-20, Company had entered into distributorship agreement with VF Hong Kong 

Limited (Licensee of VANS brand) to distribute, market and resale of VANS products (footwear, 

apparels and accessories) in India for a period of 5 years until June 30, 2024 

Vide order dated 25 March 2021 of the National Company Law Tribunal ('NCLT'), Mumbai Bench, 

Praline India Limited (the Merged Company), a Limited Company dealing in trading of PROLINE 

brand apparels, merged with the Company. 

Metro Brands Limited has acquired 100% equity share capital of the company for an enterprise 

value of Rs. 20,217 lakhs. Consequently, the Company is now a wholly owned subsidiary of the 

Metro Brands Limited from 1 December 2022. 

During the year ended 31st March 2024, the scheme of arrangement related to demerger of the 

'FILA' division of the Company has been given effect from the appointed date 1st April 2023 as per 

the sanction of Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its order dated 14th March 2024 and the 

accounting entries are recorded in the books of accounts as per the Scheme 

2(A) Material Accounting Policies: 

a) Statement of Compliance: 

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the 

recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards (herein 

referred to as 'Ind AS') notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 

amended from time to time, the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). 

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their 

meeting held on 201h May 2024. 

b) Basis of preparation and presentation: 

Basis of Preparation : 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following 

assets and liabilities: 



2(A) Material Accounting Policies: (Continued) 

i. Derivative Financial Instruments measured at Fair Value. 

ii . Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value and classified as fair value 

through profit or loss (FVTPL); and 

iii. Employee's Defined Benefit Plan as per Actuarial Valuation. 

iv. Assets and liabilities acquired under Business Combination measured at fair value. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market 

conditions, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another 

valuation technique. 

Functional and Presentation Currency: 

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's 

functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs. Amounts below the 

rounded off norm have been reflected as "O" in the relevant notes. 

Going Concern: 

As at 31 March 2024, the Company has paid up capital of Rs 9,783 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs 9,783 

lakhs). Further, the Company has incurred losses during the current year of Rs. 619 lakhs (31 

March 2023: Rs 8,061 lakhs), and capital reserve arising on demerger Rs. 5,914 lakhs {31 March 

2023: Rs. Nil) resulting in reduction in net worth to Rs (536) lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs (5,832) 

lakhs). The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and the Company 

has performed an assessment of its financial position and its forecasts for a period of twelve 

months from the date of these financial statements. Based on current liquidity positions, expected 

cash inflow out of internal accrual and planned funding, the Company will continue its operations 

and meet its liquidity needs as and when they fall due over the period of next twelve months. 

Further, Company has received confirmation from its parent company for financial support 

required for next 12 months that parent company will infuse funds as necessary into the company 

by way of equity or debt or assist the company to raise funds in any other manner in meeting its 

liabilities, including operating and statutory liabilities as and when they fall due. Accordingly, these 

financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and do not include any 

adjustments relating to the recoverability and classifications of carrying amount of assets or to the 

amounts and classification of liabilities that may be necessary if the entity is unable to continue as 

a going concern 



2(A) Material Accounting Policies: (Continued} 

b) Basis of preparation and presentation :(Continued) 

Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Cu rrent /Non-Current : 

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of Current/ 

Non-Current classification of its Assets and Liabilities. 

For the purpose of Balance Sheet, an asset is classified as current if: 

i. It is expected to be realised, or is intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating 

cycle; or 

ii. It is held primarily for the purpose of trad ing; or 

iii. It is expected to realise the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

iv. The asset is a cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to 

settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period . 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

Similarly, a liability is classified as current if: 

i. It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or 

ii. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; or 

iii. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

iv. The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability 

for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could result in 

its settlement by the issue of equity instruments at the option of the counterparty does not 
affect this classification. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

Notwithstanding the accumulated losses of the Company as at the year end, these financial 

statements have been prepared on going concern basis in view of the business plan of the 

Company and continued support of its promoters I investors. 

c) Business Acquisition: 

Business combinations arising from transfers or interests in entities that are under the control of 

the shareholders that controls the Company are accounted for as if the acquisition had occurred at 

the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented or, if later, at the date that common 

control was established; for this purpose, comparatives are revised, the assets and liabilities 

acquired are recognised at their carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves is preserved and 

they appear in the financial statements of the Company in the same form in which they appeared 

in the financial statements of the acquired entity. The difference, if any, between the net assets 

acquired and consideration is transferred to other equity. 



2(A) Material Accounting Policies: (Continued) 

d) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE): 

The initial cost of PPE comprises of its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable 
purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and 

location for its intended use, including relevant borrowing costs and any expected costs of 
decommissioning, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Subsequent expenditure relating to PPE are capitalised only when it is probable that future 

economic benefit associated with these will flow to the Company and cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance cost are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 

in the period in which the costs are incurred. 

If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of PPE. 

Material items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and service equipment are classified as 
PPE when they meet the definition of PPE as specified in Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and 
Equipment. 

e) Depreciation: 

The depreciable amount of an item of PPE is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life. The 
Company provides depreciation on the straight line method over the useful lives as prescribed 
under Schedule II of the Act. The Company believes that straight line method reflects the pattern 
in which the asset's future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. The 
residual values, useful lives ilnd method of depreciiltion ilre reviewed ilt leil'.it ilt e;:ich finilnciill 
year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

Depreciation on additions/ (disposals) are provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from/ (up to) the date 

on which the asset is ready to use/ (disposed off). 

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows: 

Asset Class 

Furniture and Fixtures 

Electrical Installations 

Air-conditioners 

Computers 

Other Equipments 

Motor Car 

Useful Lives (in years) 

- as estimated by the Company 

Upto 10 

10 

10 

3 

5 

8 



2(A) Material Accounting Policies: (Continued) 

t) Intangible Assets and Amortisation: 

Intangible assets with finite useful life that are acquired separately are stated at acquisition cost 
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The Company determines the useful 

life as the period over which the future economic benefits will flow to the Company after taking 
into account all relevant facts and circumstances. The estimated useful life and amortisation 
method is reviewed periodically, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on 

a prospective basis. 

Class of intangible assets and their estimated useful lives I basis of amortisation are as under: 

No. 

1 

2 

g) Goodwill: 

Asset class 

Software 

Licenses 

Useful Life 

3 years 

Over the period of the respective licensing agreement 

The Company estimates the value-in-use based on the future cash flows after considering current 
economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rate and 
anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed 
using internal forecasts. The discount rate used represents the weighted average cost of capital 
based on the historical market returns of comparable companies. Goodwill is tested for 
impairment at each year end. 

h) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets: 

The Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable 
amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds 
its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and 
loss. 

The recoverable amount is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in 

use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. 

In respect of the assets for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the 

Company reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has 

decreased or no longer exists. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an 
asset (other than a revalued asset) in earlier accounting periods which no longer exists or may 

have decreased, impairment loss is reversed to the extent the amount was previously charged to 

the statement of profit and loss. In case of revalued assets, such reversal is not recognised. 



2(A) Material Accounting Policies: {Continued) 

i) Inventories: 

Inventories comprise of stock-in-trade which are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable 

value. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis. 

Cost of stock-in-trade comprises of all costs of purchase, duties, taxes (other than those 
subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in bringing the 

inventory to their present location and condition. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the 
estimated costs necessary to make sale. 

j) Borrowing Costs: 

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Company in connection with the 

borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those 
property, plant and equipment which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for 
their intended use are capitalised. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss of the period in which they are incurred. 

k) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 
result of a past evenr, It Is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will 
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre­
tax rate that reflects current market assessment of time value of money and, where appropriate, 
the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to 
reflect the current best estimate. 

A present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of 

resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is 
disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible 

obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non -occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the 
control of the Company. 

Claims against the Company where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is 

remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities. 

Contingent assets are not recognised in financial statements since this may result in the 

recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realization of income is 

virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised. 



2(A) Material Accounting Policies: (Continued) 

I) Revenue Recognition: 

a. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when control of the goods are transferred to the 
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods. The Company assesses promises in the contract that are 
separate performance obligations to which a portion of transaction price is allocated. 

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction 
of any trade discounts, allowances and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the 
government such as goods and services tax, etc. Accumulated experience is used to estimate 
the provision for discounts, probable saleable and non-saleable return of goods from the 
customers. Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable a significant 
reversal will not occur. 

b. Income from services rendered is recognised based on agreements/arrangements with the 
customers as the service is performed and there are no unfulfilled obligations. 

c. Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 

m) Lease: 

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A 
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract 
conveys the right to control the u5e of Jn identified J55et, the CompJny u5e5 the definition of ;:i 
lease in Ind AS 116. 

Company as a lessee 

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from 
non-lease components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each 
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the 
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components. 

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for 

the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at 

inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted 

for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives 

received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the 
lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying 



2(A} Material Accounting Policies: (Continued) 

Leases (continued) 

asset or restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is 

subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment 

losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets is 

depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of 

lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of- use assets 

are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use 

assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts 

may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and 

loss. 

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are 

not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the 

interest rate implicit in the lease, If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses 

incremental borrowing rate, Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the 

discount rate. The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest 

rates from various external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the 

terms of the lease and type of the asset leased. For leases with reasonably similar 

characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental 

borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a 

whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value 

guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to 

exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term 

reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is subsequently 

remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing 

the carrying-amount to reflect lhe lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount 

to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease 

payments. The company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to 

modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss 

depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use 

asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease 

liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term 

leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the 

underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized 

as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 



2(A) Material Accounting Policies: (Continued) 

n) Employee Benefit Expense: 

i) Short-term Employee Benefits: 

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are 

expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount 
expected to be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal 
or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 

employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably. 

ii) Post-employment benefits 

Defined contribution plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays 
fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to 
pay further amounts. The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive post­
employment benefits in respect of provident, in which both the employees and the 

Company make monthly contributions at a specified percentage of the employees' eligible 
salary (currently 12% of employees' eligible salary). The contributions are made to the 
Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (RPFC) which are charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss as incurred. 

Defined benefit plans 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution 
plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by 
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and 
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. 

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary 

using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for 

the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits 
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future 

contributions to the plan ('the asset ceiling'). In order to calculate the present value of 
economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements. 

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and 

losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if 
any, excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. The Company 

determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for 

the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at 
the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking 
into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a 

result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses 

related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 



2(A) Material Accounting Policies: (Continued) 

Employee Benefit Expense: (Continued) 

Gratuity 

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering 

eligible employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at 
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount 

equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed year of service or part thereof in 
excess of six months. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The Company 

has obtained insurance policies with the Life Insurance Corporation of India (UC) and makes 
an annual contribution to UC for amounts notified by UC. The Company accounts for 

gratuity benefits payable in future based on an independent external actuarial valuation 
carried out at the end of the year using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains 
and losses are recognised as Other Comprehensive Income. 

iii) Other Long-term employee benefits - Compensated Absences 

The Company provides for encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. 
The employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future 
encashment I availment. The Company makes provision for compensated absences based 
on an independent actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year. Actuarial gains and 
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

o) Income Taxes: 

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or Lo an ilem recognised diredly 
in Equity or in Other Comprehensive Income. 

Current tax 

Current tax comprises expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the 

year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount 
of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after 
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax 
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for 
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax 
credits. 

Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

i. temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that 

is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the 
time of the transaction; 



2(A) Material Accounting Policies: (Continued) 

Income Taxes: (Continued) 

ii. taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence 

that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the 
Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary 
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available 

against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or 
recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it 

is probable I no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset 

is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the reporting date. 

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying 
amount of its assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 

tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the 
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and 
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

p) Foreign Currency Transactions: 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the 
transaction. Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are restated into the 
functional currency using exchange rates prevailing on the Balance sheet date. Gains and losses 
arising on settlement and restatement of foreign currency denominated monetary assets and 

liabilities are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Non- monetary items carried at fair 
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date 
when the fair value was determined. 

Non-Monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 
translated using exchange rate as at the date of initial transactions. 

q) Earnings Per Share: 

The Company calculates earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attributable to ordinary 

equity shareholders. 

The basic Earnings Per Share ("EPS") is computed by dividing the net profit I (loss) after tax for the 

year attributable to the equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year. 



2(A) Material Accounting Policies: {Continued) 

Earnings Per Share: (Continued) 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, net profit/(loss) after tax for the year 
attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

r) Financial Instruments: 

i) Recognition and Initial Measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are 

originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the 
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at 

Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to 
its acquisition or issue. 

ii) Classification and Subsequent Measurement 

Financial assets 

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at 

Amortised cost; 

Fair Value through Olher Currq..1relremive lricume (FVOCI)- debl investment; 

Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income - equity investment; or 

FVTPL 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in 
the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions 
and is not designated as at FVTPL: 

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect 
contractual cash flows; and 

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is 
not designated as at FVTPL: 

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and 



2(A) Material Accounting Policies: (Continued) 

Financial Instruments: (Continued) 

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

ii) Classification and Subsequent Measurement (Continued) 

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may 

irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI 
(designated as FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by­

investment basis. 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above 
are measured at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, 

the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the 
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so 
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets: subsequent measurement and gains and losses -

Financial assets at FVTPL 

Financial assets at amortised 
cost 

Debt investments at FVOCI 

Equity investments at FVOCI 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. 
Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend 
income, are recognised in profit or loss. 

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method. The amortised 
cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, 
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognised in protit or loss. Any gain or loss on 
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. 
Interest income under the effective interest method, 
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are 
recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses 
accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss. 

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. 
Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss 
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part 
of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses 
are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or 
loss. 

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability 

is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is 

designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at 



Material Accounting Policies: (Continued) 

Financial Instruments: (Continued) 

FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Other financial liabilities are 

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest 
expenses and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Standalone Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in Statement of Profit 

and Loss. 

iii) Derecogniton 

Financial assets 

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows 

from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows 
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers not retains 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership but does not retain control of the 

financial asset. 

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its 

balance sheet but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the 
transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised. 

Financial liabilities 

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are 
discharged or cancelled or expired. 

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when it terms are modified and the cash 

flow under the !110dified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial 
liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the 
carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with 
modified terms is recognised in profit or loss. 

iv) Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the 
balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right 

to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Equity Instrument 

Equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the 

contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of an equity instrument. An 

equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the 
Company after deducting all of its liabilities and includes no obligation to deliver cash or 
other financial assets. 



Material Accounting Policies: (Continued) 

Financial Instruments: (Continued} 

Measurement of fair values 

The Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, 

for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. 

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of 

fair values. The Company regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation 
adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to 

measure fair values, then the Company assesses the evidence obtained from the third 
parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, 

including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified. 

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs 
used in the valuation techniques as follows : 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 : inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

Level 3 : inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs). 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable 
market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a 
liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement 
is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level 
input that is significant to the entire measurement. 

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of 
the reporting period during which the change has occurred. 

s) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet comprise cash at bank and in hand that are readily 

convertible into cash which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and are held for the 
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments. 

t) Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments: 

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from 

which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by 

the company's management to make decisions for which discrete financial information is 
available. 

Based on the management approach as defined in Ind AS 108, the management evaluates the 

Company's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance 
indicators by business segments and geographic segments. 



2(B) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty: 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to 
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and 

the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the 
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical 

judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the financial statements are included in the following notes: 

a) Defined Benefit Plans and Compensated Absences: 

The cost of the defined benefit plans, compensated absences and the present value of the defined 

benefit obligation are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An 
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments 

in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and 
mortality rates. 

Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit 
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at 
each reporting date. 

b) Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments: 

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet 
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using 
valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models are 

taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of 
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such 
as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 

c) Impairment of Financial Assets: 

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and 
expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these 



2(B) Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty: (Continued) 

assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past 

history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each 

reporting period . 

d) Provision for warranties: 

The estimated liability for product warranties is recorded when products are sold. These estimates 

are established using historical information on the nature, frequency and average cost of warranty 

claims and management estimates regarding possible future incidences. The timing of outflows 

will vary as and when warranty claim will arise. 

e) Provision for sales returns: 

In determining the provision for anticipated sales returns, estimates for probable saleable and 

non-saleable returns of goods from the customers are made on a scientific basis after factoring in 

the historical data of such returns and its trend. 

f) Taxes: 

Deferred tax, subject to the consideration of prudence, is recognised on temporary differences 

between the taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable 

of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent 

that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future tax income will be available against which 

such deferred tax assets can be realized . 

2(C) Recent Pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards of amendments to the existing 
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For 
the year ended 31'1 March 2024, MCA has not modified any new standards or amendments to the 
existing standards applicable to the Company. 
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Metro Athleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Equity share capital 

Particulars 

Balance at the beginning of the current reporting year 

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year 

-Restated balance at the beginning of the current year 

-Conversion of Preference shaers into equity shares 

Balance at the end of the current reporting year 

Preference share capita I 

Particulars 

A1 the commencement of the year 

Add: Shares reclassified from non-current borrowings to share 

capital due to change in conversion ratio from variable to fixed 

i.e. 1 equity shares for holding 1 CCPS 

Less: Conversion into equity shares 

At the end of the period 

('I in Lakhs) 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

4,083 3,271 

4,083 3,271 

812 

4,083 4,083 

March 31, 2024 

No. of Shares Amount 

5,700,000 5,700 

5,700,000 5,700 

("in LakhsJ 

March 31, 2023 

No. of Shares Amount 

8,116.864 8,117 

5,700.000 5,700 

(8,116,864) (8,117) 

5,700.000 5,700 



~ 

Other equity 

Particulars Retained Earnings 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 (14,743) 

Loss transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss (8,037) 

Capital reserve created on conversion of Preference Shares . 

into Equity Shares 

Other comprehensive income . 
OCD classified as Equity . 

Total comprehensive income for the year (8,037) 

Balance as at Marth 31, 2023 (22,781) 

Loss transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss (619) 

Transfer pursuant to demerger 5,914 

Total comprehensive income for the year 5,295 

Balance as at March 31, 2024 (17,485) 

See accompanying notes from 1 to SO forming part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date attached 

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No.116560W/W100149 

'\2::JV ,_p/ ? ocJ ;)_ 

Bhavin Kapadia 

Partner 

Membership No: 118991 

Mumbai 

Dated: May 20, 2024 

Securities Premium 

2,095 
. 

. 

. 

2,095 

. 

2,095 

Reserves & Surplus 

Capita! Reserve Capital Redemption 

Reserve 

222 69 
. 

7,305 

. 

7,305 . 

7,527 69 

. . 
. 

. 

7,527 69 

Export Tu mover General Amalgamation Equity portion of 
Reserve Reserve Adjustment Deficit Flnanclal 

Account Instrument 
4 2,335 (5,308) 

. . 
. . 

. . . 

. 641 

. . 641 

4 2,335 (5,308} 641 

. . 
. . . 

4 2,335 (5,308) 641 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Metro Athleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 

[CIN: U51909MH2016PLC288788] 

~ fl-r 
Kaushal Parekh 

Director and CFO 

(DIN No. 09794399) 

Nissan Joseph 

Director 

(DIN No. 06701972) 

('f in t.ak·hs) 

Other comprehensive 

income 
Total attributable to 

Remeasurements of the equity 5 hareholders 
defined benefit plans 

(174) 
. 

(24) 

(24) 

(198) 

. 

(198) 

~ 
Krutika Mohan Rane 

Company Secretary 

(15,500) 

(8,037) 

7,305 

(24) 

641 

(115) 

(15,615) 

(619) 

5,91<1 

5,295 

(10,319) 



Metro Athleisure limited {fo1me1lv \mown as Cravatex Brands limited) 

Notes to the financial .statements (Continued} 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Sr.No, D•scrlptlon ol Asset Aul 
Redesstflc.atlon 

Aprll l , 1023 

TANGIBLE ASSETS 
1 rurniturc ~ nd Fi'o:turc'> 1262 (398) 

2 Elcclri c;:illn$l<1llat1om 112 (37) 

3 ComptJtt-ri 94 43 

4 OlbiG~ Equipments 114 (114) 

5 Land 5 (5) 

6 Building 306 5 

7 ~r.l\Old Improvements 2 480 

• Pl:1:111 & M.Jd 1lr\crv 28 23 
TOTAL l.924 131 

Sr. No . Oesalptlon of Asset Aul 
Aedasstflt1tlon 

Aprll l, 2022 

TANGIBLE ASSETS 

l Furniture and Fixture'> 1,324 

I Electrical ln stallo:itions 117 . 
l Compute rs 96 

' other Equipments 121 

Ii Land 5 

6 Building 306 

1 leasehold Improvements 2 

• Plant & Machinc r'{ 28 

TOTAL l,999 

3A A.$$it• Held for sale 

Sr. No.I Descrlpllon of Asset Gross Blodc 

Bwlding 21 

Other intangible assets 

Sr. Descrlpllon of Asset 

No. Asal 
Redasslftcatlon 

Aprll 1, 2023 

INTAN.GrBLE ASSETS 

I Computer Soft ware 77 3 

' license 2868 

TOTAL U4S 3 

Sr. De5alptlon of Asset 

No. As•• 
RKlesstflcatlon 

Aprll 1* 2022 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

l License"> 3,930 

1 Computer So ftware 62 . 
TOTAL J.992 

~ 

GrouBlodl 

Transfer pursu1nt 
to demeraer 

Additions 

(J;l8) 

(2) 

198) . 
-

(459) -
llOI 

1917\ 

Gron Btoc:k 

Transfer pursuant 
to demer1er 

Aca.imulated 
Oearedatlon 

(12) 

Additions 

8 

20 

1 

29 

Net Block 

GrouBlodt 

Transfer pursuant 
Additions 

to d1mer1er 

(43} 

12 .RGR) . 
(2,911) 

G<oullod! 

Transfer pursuant 
MdlUoni 

to demeraer 

15 

I S 

-aus1Hoc1 
Disposals 

u Held for Sele 

(419) 

(73) 

(39) 

1290) 1211 

1211 -
(21) 

18641 ,,,, 

Al..t Ooalflod 
01-1>-

.. Hold l0t Sale 

(70J 
(S) 

(22) 

18) 

0 

a 
0 

0 
(lOS) 

,. 
•' " ~ .. ; 

-0.Ulfiod 
Olsposals 

as Hald tor Sala 

1201 

r201 -

.:;._....::~ ' ... : --~-: ·-
-<Juslflod 

Dlsposols 
es Hald for Sala 

(1,062) 

11,otill 

Aut Aut 

March JL 2024 AprU ~ 20:!3 

117 112 

80 

68 

90 

1:13 

2 2 

3 

119 11168 

As•I Asat 

March 31, 2023 1l.prll20Z2 

1,262 li23 

112 so 
94 91 

114 SI 
5 

306 1J9 

2 2 

28 I 

1,924 . .,,, 

Asot As •• 

Marc.h 31, 2024 Aprll 1, 20Z3 

16 ~ 

1,6.U 

16 1.611 

Asat Asel 

Morch 11, :ZOU Apli\ 1, 2022 

2,868 1,875 

77 lO 

U 45 ue5 

~~"-\\l.'-l.. 
Accumulated Depreciation Net Block 

Transfer pursuant Depredation chara:e for 
lll• ra• to, tha p ar - -· Aul A,.t ..... 

AeclHslfkadon 
to demer1er theyeu dlscaatJouad OnDlspos41b: a...l!Mdas 

op~radon~ (ri!fer note " ) Held lvf S.le Much Jl.2024 March u. 2024 March 31, toll 

(1 58) 1155) 64 (172) ., 25 550 
128) 121 2 (53) 32 
41 175) 2 (37) - 16 

190) - . 74 

- s 
2 , (107) IUI - 193 

316 (295) . 121) >~ 

14 131 l 1151 . 25 
llll 15291 ,. 15031 1121 9J 1S ass 

-.. 111 ~•.11 11 

Accumulated Depredation Net Block 

Transfer pursU1nt Depredation ch1r1e for 
Chlflf! fOf lh• ya., - -· Asal As•t Asat 

Aedesslftadon diwootlnued On Disposals Cluslfied .. 
to demer1er the year 

OPfl ldOt\1. (rRf.u nole 39) Held for Sala March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

'"" ,5 (60) 712 550 701 
4 I 141 80 32 37 
5 2 (20J 68 26 IS 

12 5 18] 90 24 40 
5 s 

3 1 114 193 197 

2 
l l . 2 25 ,, 

Jl9 SS ,.,, I 068 ass 1022 

~ .............. 
Accumulated Depredation Net Blodl 

Transfer pursuant 
Depreclatfon char1e Char111 for the yur - -· Asat As•• As •• 

Red1sslncatlon discontinued On Dlspouls Oasslfledu 
todemer1er for the year operations (refer note 39) Held for Sela March 31, 2024 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

3 (231 6 . '91 16 . 1,227 
(1,641) 37 

l (l ,664) ' 191 16 l,2M 

i'ln L>ltln) 

Accumulated Ot pucf.ll lon Ntt BJodi 

Transfer pursuant Oepredatlon c:har1e Cherie for the year - - Asal Asat Asal 
Redasslflatlon discontinued On Dlsposels aaulfledes 

to demer1er for the year optrat\ons (refer note 40) Hald for Sale March 31, 2023 March Jl, 2023 Milrdi 11.,.lOll 

. 21' 92 1140) 1,641 1,227 2,054 

6 3 40 37 32 

22D gs 15401 l,£11 1,164 l .08li 



Metro A.,::hleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 
Notes to ( he flnancial stat.,men~ (Continued) 

For the y~ar ended March 31, 2024 

5 lnv~ments 

--
Particulars 

lnv.e"~tment in Equity shares of Saraswat Co-operative Bank Limited (Unquoted) 

(2 eq•itvshares of face value of~ lOeach) 

Tor a 1 

-

6 Ott. •" Financial Assets 

Particulars 

Ba n k deposits with original maturity beyond 12 months 

DepDSits 

Other Financial Assets 

Receivable from Hclding Comµanv (Ref note 31) 

Tot: al 

7 0th er Assets 

Particulars 

Advance to vendors 

Receivable from Government authorities 

Advance for DEPB License 

Pre paid expenses 

Gra tu itv (Ref note 30) 

Total 

8 Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) 

- -
Particulars 

Stock- 1n-Tr'adc 

Total 

(~in Lakhs) 

Non-Current Current 

Asat Asat Asat Asat 

March 31 2024 March 31 2023 M~rch 31. 2024 March 31 2023 

1 1 

1 1 

("in Uikhs) 

Non-current Current 

Asat Asat Asat Asat 
March 31, 2024 March 31.2023 March 31. 2024 March 31.2023 

11 3 

- 393 

3 7 

- 269 

11 399 269 7 

(~in Lakhs) 

Non-current Current 

Asat Asat Asat Asat 
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 March 31, 2024 March 31.2023 

4S8 

386 l,OS8 

- - . 4 

1 SS 

107 

494 1,575 

(~in Lakhs) 

Asat Asat 
March 31 2024 March 31 2023 

743 5,153 

743 S,1S3 



Metro Athlel' isure limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 
Notes to the f inancial statements (Continued) 

For the year ~ nded March 31, 2024 

9 Trade ~eteivables 

~ 

Particulars 
-

SecU";;c::I• considered good 

Unsecu red, considered good 

Credit i (T'Paired 

Total 

Less : Los<Allowance 

Total 

Note: 

As at 
March 31. 2024 

. 
413 

772 

1,185 

(772) 

413 

(i) For iriformation about credit risk and market risk of trade receivables (Ref note 34). 

(ii) For c;erms and conditions relating to related party receivables (Ref note 31). 

(iii) Provision for sales return has been reclassified from Provisions to Trade receivable . 

9.1 Trade iteteivables ageing schedule 

As at March 31, 2024 

Part1cv1ars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 

(ii) Undi sputed Trade Receivables -which have significant increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables-credit impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables -which have significant increase in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Trade Receivables 

Less : Al lowances 

Net Trade Receivables 

As at March 31, 2023 

Partlcvlars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good 

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables -which have significant increase in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Trade Receivables 

Less : Allowances 

Net Trade Receivables 

9.2 Movement of Loss Allowance 

Partlcvlars 

Balance as at March 31, 2022 

Add: Provisions (net) 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 

Less: transfer pursuant to demerger 

Less: Provisions (net) 

Balance as at March 31, 2024 

10 Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Balances with banks: 

Current accounts 

Cash in hand & Imprest 

Bank deposit with original maturity of less than 3 months 

Total 

Less than 6 months 

37 
. 

109 
. 
. 
. 

146 

Less than 6 months 

3,995 

300 
. 

4.295 

(;o: in Lakhs) 

Total 

1,534 

526 

2,060 

(996) 

(292) 

772 

Asat 
March 31. 2024 

117 

] 

. 

121 

(-:in Lakhs) 

As at 
March 31,2023 

93 

4.778 

2,060 

6,930 

(2,060) 

4,871 

(~in Lakhs) 

6 months • 1 year 1-2 years 2·3years More than 3 years Total 

4 270 103 . 413 
. . 

1 301 361 . 772 
. 

. . . 
. 

5 571 464 . 1,185 

(772) 

413 

(" in Lakhs) 

6 months· 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

645 110 119 2 4,871 
. . . 
22 1,212 (7) 533 2,060 
. . 

. . 
. . 

667 1,322 112 ~~~ 6,930 

(2,060) 

4,871 

(~in Lakhs) 

As at 

March 31,2023 

94 

5 

7 

106 



Metro A-thleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 

Notes to i;he financial statements (Continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2024 

11 Sh3re Capital 

Particulars 
As at March 31, 2024 

Number of Shares Amount 
Au-thorized 

Eqo.Jity Share of Rs. 100/- each 4,800,000 

Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 14,166,875 

Total 18,966,875 

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up: 

Equity Share of Rs , 100/- each 4,082,789 

0,001% Compulsory Convertible Preference shares of-: 100 each 5,700,000 

Total 9,782,789 

Notes: 

1 Reconciliation of Number of Shares: 

(A) Equity Shares· 

As at March 31, 2024 
Particulars 

Number of Shares Amount 

Sha res outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,082,789 

Shares issued to the preference share holder on conversion in the ratio -
of10:1 
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 4,082,789 

(B) Preference Shares: 

As at March 31, 2024 
Particulars 

Number of Shares Amount 

Sha res outstanding at the beginning of the year 5,700,000 

less : Shares converted into equity shares in the ratio of 10:1 i.e , 1 -
equity shares for every 10 preference shared held 

Add : Shares reclassified from non-current borrowings to share capital -
due to change in conversion ratio from variable to fixed i.e. 1 equity 
shares for holding 1 CCPS 

Shares outstanding at the end of the year 5,700,000 

2 Terms/rights attached to the Equity Shares 

('C in Lakhs except for No of Shares) 
As at March 31, 2023 

Number of Shares Amount 

4,800 4,800,000 4,800 

14,167 14,166,875 14,167 

18,967 18,966,875 18,967 

4,083 4,082,789 4,083 

5,700 5,700,000 5,700 

9,783 9,782,789 9,783 

(-: in Lakhs except for No. of Shares) 

As at March 31, 2023 

Number of Shares Amount 

4,083 3,271,100 3,271 

811,689 812 

4,083 4,082,789 4,083 

(~ in Lakhs except for No. of Shares) 

As at March 31, 2023 

Number of Shares Amount 

5,700 8,116,864 8,117 

8,116,864 8,117 

5,700,000 5,700 

5,700 S,700,000 5,700 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.100/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company 
declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. 

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution to all preferential 
holders. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 



Metro A. thleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands limited) 

Notes to t:he fina ncial st atements (Continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2024 

3 Terms/rights attached to the Preference Shares 

The Company has issued 0.001% compulsory convertible preference shares (CCPS) having a par value of Rs .100/- per share. 

o,.e CCPS shall be converted into one equity share atthe option of the holder 

Each holder of the CCPS shall be entitled to vote together with equity shareholders as if such shareholders held maximum number of equity shares representing the 

deemed shareholding into which its CCPS will be converted. 

Du ring the previous year, Company has changed the terms of CCPS wherein variable conversion has been changed to Fixed to Fixed conversion in the ratio of 1 equity 

shares for holding 1 CCPS 

4 Shares held by the Holding Company 

(A) Equity Shares· 

Name of the Shareholders 

Metro Brands Limited 

(B) Preference Shares: 

Name of the Shoreholders 

Metro Brands Limited 

Shareholders holding more than 5% 

(A) Equity Shares: 

Name of the Shareholders 

Metro Brands Limited 

(B Preference Shares: 

Name of the Shareholders 

Metro Brands Limited 

6 Shareholdinr of Promotors 

(A) Equi ty Shares: 

Name of the Shareholders 

Metro Brands Limited 

(B) Preference Shares: 

Name of the Shareholders 

Metro Brands Limited 

As at March 31, 2024 

Number of Shares I % 

4,082,189 I 100.00% 

As at March 31, 2024 

Number of Shares I % 
5,100,000 J 100.00"/o 

As at March 31, 2024 

Number of Shares I % 

4,082,159 I 100.00% 

As at March 31, 2024 

Number of Shares % 

5,700,000 100.00% 

As It March 31, 2024 

Number of Shares % 

4,082,789 100.00% 

As at March 31, 2024 

Number of Shares I % 

5,100,000 I 100.00"/o 

As at March 31, 2023 

Number of Shares I % 

4,082,189 I 100.00% 

As at March 31, 2023 

Number of Shares I % 

s,700,000 I 100.00% 

As at March 31, 2023 

Number of Shares % 

4,082,789 100.00% 

As at March 31, 2023 

Number of Shares % 
5,700,000 100.00"/o 

As at Mai ch 31, 2023 

Number of Shares % 
4,082,789 100.00% 

As at March 31, 2023 

Number of Shares I " s,100,000 I 100.00",.(, 



Met (O Athleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 
Notes to the financial statements (Continued) 

For t'1e Vear ended March 31, 2024 

Other Equf!y 

Particulars 

Refer Stat ciment cf cha nges in Equity for de tailc-d movement ln equity balanc..e. 
(II SecurltlC!S Premium (Bal~nce at the beginning and end of the year) 

(11) Capital Reserves 

Opening lla lance 

Add; D pita l re..s1Hvo crea ted on converslc:in c f Prefe rence Sha res ln10 Equny 
Shares 

Closing Balance 

(iii) Capital Redemption Reserves (Balance at the beginning and end of the 

year) 

(iv) Export Turnover Reserve (Balance at the beginning and end of the year) 

(v) General Reserve (Balance at the beginning and end olthe year) 

(vi) Amalgamation Adjustment Deficit Account (Balance at the beginning and 

end olthe year) 

(vii) Equity portion of financial instrument (Balance at the beginning and end 

of the year) 

(viii) Retained Earnings 

Opening Balance 

Add: Transfer pursuant to demerger (Ref note 40) 

Add: Transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss 

Closing Balance 

(ix) Other Comprehensive Income 

Opening Balance 

Add: Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 

Closing Balance 

Total 

Description of nature and purpose of each reserve: 

(~in Lakhs) 

Asat As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

2,096 2,096 

7,527 222 

- 7,305 

7,527 7,527 

69 69 

4 4 

2,335 2,335 

(5,308) (5,308) 

641 641 

(22,780) (14,743) 

5,914 

(619) (8.037) 

(17,485) (22,780) 

(199) (175) 

(24) 

(199) (199) 

(10,319) (15,615) 

(i) Securities Premium: The amount represents the excess of face value of the equity and compulsory convertible 

preference shares~ 

(ii) Retained Earnings: 

Addition - Loss that the Company has incurred during the year. 

Addition - The amount represent the excess of liabilities over assets pursuant to demerger (Ref note 40)_ 

(iii) Capital Reserve: This constitutes reserve created on account of conversion of Preference Shares into Equity Shares 

and reserves taken over as a result of merger of Praline India limited. 

(iv) Capital Redemption Reserve, Export Turnover Reserve and General Reserve: These are the reserves taken over as a 

result of merger of Praline India limited. These reserves including Amalgmation adjustment deficit account will be 

utilized as per the conditions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
(v) Amalgamation Adjustment Deficit Account: The same is created on account of merger between Cravatex Brands 

Limited and Praline India Limited w ,e_f April 1, 2020. This represents difference between consideration paid to the 

shareholder of Praline India Limited and net assets acquired during the merger. 

13 Borrowings 

Non-Current 

Particulars Asat Asat 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

(Unsecured) 

ICD from Metro Brands Ltd. 14,580 

18,00,000 Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD) 1,450 1,457 

(Debt portion of financial instrument) 

Total 1,450 16,037 

Notes: 

Unsecured: 

Terms of Optionally Convertible Debentures(OCD): 

(~in Lakhs) 

Current 

As at Asat 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

862 

. 

862 

-The OCD has been lair valued through profit and loss using Black and Scholes Model· Option Pricing Method at Rs. 2,091 lakhs (March 31, 2023 ·Rs. 2,098 

lakhs) (Refer note 33 and 12(vii)) 

- Interest - On redemption, the holder of the OCDs shall be entitled to receive, together with the face value of the relevant OCDs, a redemption premium 

determined as in any other circumstances, such amount as the holder of the OCDs and the Company may mutually agree prior to such redemption. 

-The Company has issued following Unsecured Optionally Convertible Debentures. Debentures are alloted on 27 March, 2017. 

- The OCDs shall be converted into one equity share at the option of the holder. 

Unsecured: 

Terms of Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD} availed from Metro Brands Limited: 

- The Company availed Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) from Metro Brands Limited (Holding Company) 

-The ICD amount shall be used for working capital reqirement of the Company. 

- Tenure of ICO is 2 years from the date of availment~ 

- The above ICD carries a rate of interest of 7%. 



Met t 0 Athleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 
Note- s to th e fin ancial statements (Continued) 

Fort tie vear ended March 31, 2024 

1P Other Financial Liabilities 

Particulars 

Interest Pavable 

Total 

1~ Lease Liability 

Particulars 

Lease Liability 

Total 

16 Provisions 

Particulars 

Provision for employee benefits: 
Gratuity 

Compensated absences . 
Total 

# Aggregate va lue 1s less th a n~ 0.50 lakhs 

17 Other Non-Current Liabilities 

Particulars 

Security deposits 
From Dealers and Distributors 

Total 

18 Trade Payables 

Pdl llLUldl~ 

Due t o Micro and smal l enterprises (Ref note 29) 

Due to ot hers 

Total 

Notes: 

Non-current 

Asat Asat 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

- -
-

Non-current 
As at Asat 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

1,321 

1.321 

Non-current 

As at Asat 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

- -
1 45 

1 45 

~ 1n Lokhs) 

Asat As at 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

341 
341 

(~in Lakhs) 

Asat Asat 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

63 663 
187 2,742 

250 3,405 

(i) Trade discount payables has bee n reclassifie d from Other Financial Liabilities to Trade Payables. 

(ii) Accrual for expenses has been reclassified from Other Financial Liabilities to Trade Payables. 

18.l Trade Payables ageing schedule 

As at March 31 2024 

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-Z years 

MSME 5 29 
Others 116 7 
Disputed Dues - MSME - -
Disputed Dues - Others 

Unbilled dues - -
Total Trade Pavables 121 36 

As a t March 31 202.3 

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-Z years 

MSME 620 35 
Others 2,295 182 
Disputed Dues - MSM E 
Disputed Dues - Others - -
Unbilled dues - -

Total Trade Payables 2,915 217 

19 Other Current Liabilities 

(~ i n Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Asat Asat 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Advances received against supplies and services 116 
Statutory Dues 64 80 
Employee benefits payable 10 239 
Provision for other Expenses 5 
From Dea lers and Distributors 6 
Total 85 436 

Note: 
(i) Employee benefits paya ble ha s been reclassified from Other Financial Liabilities to Other Current Liabilities. 

(~ 1n l>~hs) 

Current 

As at Asat 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

(1) 

(11 

{ ~ in Lakhs) 

Current 

Asat Asat 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

656 

656 

f~ in La khs l 
Current 

Asat Asat 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

53 

0 7 

0 60 

( ~ In U:lk.h~ ) 

2-3years More than 3 years Total 

20 8 63 
5 59 187 

-
- -

26 67 250 

2-3 years More than 3 years Total 

8 - 663 
139 126 2,742 

-
- -

147 126 3.405 



Metro Athleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 
Notes to the financial statements (Continued} 

For the year ended March 31, 2024 

20 Revenue from Operations 

Particulars 

Sale of products 

Sale of services 

Other operating income 

Total 

Note: 

(i) Refer note 38 for disclosure in accordance with Ind AS 115. 

21 Other Income 

Particulars 

Interest Income 

Interest income on fa ir value of security deposits 

Fair value adjustment at FVTPL on debt portion of financials instrument 

Rent Received 

Gain on sale of PPE 

Miscellaneous Income 

Total 

22 Change in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 

Particulars 
. 

Opening stock 

Stock-in-trade (including goods in transit) 

Stores and spares 

Total 

Less: Inventory transferred on demerger (Ref note 40) 

Closing stock 

Stock-in-trade (including goods in transit) 

Total 

(Increase)/ Decrease in stock-in-trade 

23 Employee benefits expense 

Particulars 

Salaries and wages 

Contributions to : 

Providend and other funds 

Staff welfare expenses 

Total 

(~in Lakhs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

1,296 5,008 
. 70 
. 1 

1,296 5,079 

(~in Lakhs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

1 1 
. 18 

7 (2) 

33 35 

103 . 

70 3 

214 54 

(~in Lakhs) 

I-or the year ended ~or the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

5,153 1,895 
. 77 

5,153 1,972 

(3,793) -

743 1,317 

743 1,317 

618 655 

(~in Lakhs) 

For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

167 997 

20 94 

2 19 

189 1,110 



Metro Athleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 
Notes to the financial statements (Continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2024 

24 Finance costs 

Particulars 

Interest expense on bank borrowings 

Interest expense on others 

Total 

25 Other expenses 

Particulars 

Electricity charges 

Warehouse expenses 

Rent 

Insurance 

Rates and taxes 

Printing and stationery 

Communication expenses 

Repairs and maintenance 

Advertisement and sales promotion 

Travelling and conveyance 

Commission and brokerage 

Transportation and octroi charges 

Lesa! and profession;il ch;irgcs 

Bank Charges not related to borrrowings 

Payment to auditors 

Bad Debts written off 

Advance written off 

Deposits written off 

Allowance for doubtful debts 

Foreign exchange fluctuation (Net) 

Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 

Miscellaneous expenses 

Total 

Note: 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

(i) Packing materials consumed reclassified from Other expense to Purchase of Stock in trade. 

(ii) Payment to Auditors 

Nature of Service 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

As auditor 

Statutory Audit 

Other services 

Reimbursement of expenses 

Total 

("I: in Lakhs) 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

- 132 
60 135 

60 267 

("I: in Lakhs) 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

7 20 

112 30 

8 -
1 6 

5 14 

2 7 

6 33 

24 34 

44 334 

28 47 

1 82 

47 71 

JB4 '.:iGB 

1 4 

13 31 

- 25 

- 209 

- 18 

30 311 

- 16 

- 3 

45 38 

756 1,900 

("I: in Lakhs) 

For the year ended 

31 March 2023 

13 15 

- 15 

- 1 

13 31 



Metro ,Pthleisure limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 
Notes t~ the financial statements (Continued) 

For the ..;ear ended March 31, 2024 

26 c.D•tingent Liabilities: 

Particular> 

A (,ontingent liabilites : 

(i) 
c 1a1ms against the Company not acknowledged as debt (Being disputed under 

o jstrict and Sessions Court, Ludhiana) 

(ii) Fi rie imposed u/s 270 of the Income tax Act, 1961 

B c"mmitments 
(iJ corporate guarantee 
(ii) esnk guarantee against fixed deposits 

Note : 

('I: '" Lakh•) 
As at March 31, 2024 As atMarch 31, 2023 

54 

30 30 

1 2 

9 9 

As per traces (Income Tax portal) there is an outstanding demand of Rs. 8 lakhs (excluding interest) (March 31, 2023 - Rs Nil) against which the Company is in the process of filling the 

rectification and the Company does not expect any cash outflow, considering this the Company has not disclosed this under "Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt". 

27 1r1come Taxes 

A. Components of Income Tax EJl:pense: 

(i) Tax expense recognised in profit and loss 
I~ in Lakhs) 

Particular> 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 

current tax. 

Earlier year tax provision /(written back) 52 (9) 

Tax exocrue for the ve;u 52 (9l 

(ii) Tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income - Rs. Nil (March 31, 2023 - Rs. Nil) 

8. Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate: 

Particular> 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31.2023 
Profit I (Ion) before income to .. s (567) (2,311) 
Proflt/{loss) from discontinued operation~ b.efore Income T.,x (5,735) 

Proflt I (loss) before Income ta xes (567) (8,046) 

At India's St:Jtutorv lncomeTilX Rote ol 15.168". (P.V. 25.1"4%) (143) (2,025) 

AtJJu~tutents tu •~1.unr:lfu cxµt.!cLed lnc:o1~1e tax r~ pl!:n~~ lo rtipo~d lncorn~ 

tax expense 
0-ehmcd uoc ;nsei net recasni!IC?d e n rt!malntng amount of lo~~e-s 143 2,025 

Adjusted Income tax expense/ (credit) 
T.:ix chsrse I ~ c-red lt) lmpai:tglve n 1n Othe r Comprehem1ve Income . 
Total Ta• . . 

Effcctiv<! Income Tax Ratl! 0% 0% 

C. Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities: 

I\ in lokh•l 
Particular> Opening as on Aprtl 1, 2023 Re<ognlsed In Profit and Net Defetnd tax asset 

loss for the vear I (llablllties) 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets (72) 72 
Deferred tax assets 

Disallowances under section 43B 24 (24) 
Oisallowances under section 40(a)(ia) 196 (196) . 
Carrv forward Losses and Others (148) 148 
Deferred tax asset I (liabilities! as at March 31, 2024 . 

(~in Lakhs) 

Particular> Opening as on Recognised In Profit and Net Deferred tax asset 

Aprll l, 2022 loss for the year / lllabilltles) 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Property, plant and equipment & Intangib le assets (253) (181) (72) 

Deferred tax assets 

Disallowances under section 438 31 7 24 

Disallowances under section 40{a)(ia) 304 108 196 

Carry forward Losses (569) 296 (865) 

Others 487 (230) 717 

Deferred la• asset/ (liabilities) as at 31 March, 2023 

The Company was incorporated on 22 December 2016 and purchased business as on 23 March 2017 During the previous years and current year Company has incurred business losses . 

deferred tax assets could be realised, and accordingly deferred tax asset has been recognised to the extent of liability. 



D tJf1recognlsed deferred tax asset: 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31. 2024 March 31,2023 
C .o1 rry forwnrd business losses 3,894 8,891 
u ,,;itna,boed r>eprecia t11:111 984 3,953 

f"tal 4.878 12.844 

-
r~• assets : 

(~in L>kh•) 

Partlcui..,. 
For the yar ended For the year ended 

Mardi 31. 2024 March 31,2023 
Aidvance tax and TOS 25 38 

Total 25 38 

28 l <i min•·• oel 5h>re (EP5l : 

Contlnuln1 operations Continuing operations 
Discontinuing 

operations 
Particulars 

For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended 

Mardi 31, 2024 March 31,2023 March 31,2023 

aasic EPS 

(i) Net Profit/ (Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders (619) (2,302) (S,735) 
{ii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding (Nos.) 4,082,789 3,577,917 3,577,917 

Basic Earnings Per Share (Rs.) (i/11) (15.16) (64 34) (160.30) 
(i) Weiehted average number of Equity Shares outstandine (Nos,) 4,082,789 3,577,917 3,577,917 
(ii ) Add: Potential Equity Shares on exercise of CCPS (Nos) 5,700,000 5,700,000 

(iii) Weighted average number of Equity Shares Outstanding for calculation of Dilutive EPS (i+ii) 4,082,789 9,277,917 9,277,917 
Diluted Earning Per Share (Rs.) ((i) /(iii)} (15.16) (24 81) (6182) 

29 M lcro and Small Enterprises: 

Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Deve lopment Act, 2006 (MSMED) which came into force from 2 October 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to 
Micro, Small and Medium enterprises , 

Particulars 

{ii ) the principal amount and the interest due t turr~u n remaining unpaid to ilny 
supplier at the end of each accounting year; 
(i) Principal amount 

(ii) Interest due thereon 

(b) the amount of interest pa id by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006). 
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 
appointed day during each accounting year; 

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in milkl fiS 
payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during the vcar) 
but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Mt:!dlu m 

Enterprises Development Act, 200~; 

[d} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at 31st March 

{e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
.iucce~djnfC years, until such date when the interest dues above are cictuallv 
pJ ld to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disaUowance of a deduc1Jb!o 
t.Xpc rul iture under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enlorprlses 
Oe-wa loprnent Act, 2006. 

As at March 31, 2024 

63 

63 

63 

As at March 31, 2023 

483 
180 

180 

180 

180 

Principal amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises amounts to Rs, Nil (March 2023 - Rs. 483 lakhs) and interest overdue on the same amounts to Rs. 63 lakhs {March 2023 - Rs. 180 
lakhs) . During the year for continuing business no interest has been paid to such parties This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the 
basis of information available with the Company and the same has been relied upon by the auditors. 

I \ In l..:l khl) 

Total 

For the vear ended 
March 31,2023 

(8,037) 
3,577,917 

(224 ,64) 
3,577,917 

9,277,911 
(86 63) 



30 Employee Benefits : 

A Oefined Benefit Plans: 

(i) Gratuity: 
ihe gratuity payable to employees is based on the employee's service and last drawn salaf)' at the time of leaving the services of the Company and is in accordance with the rules of 

the Company for payment of gratuity 

inherent Risk on above: 
ihe plan is defined in nature which is sponsored by the Company and hence it underwrites all the risks perta in ing to the plan. In particular, this ell!poses the Company to actuarial risk 
such as adverse salary growth, change in demographic experience, inadequate return on underlying plan assets, This may result in an increase in cost of providing these benefits to the 

employees in future Since the benefits are lump sum in nature, the plan is not subject to any longevity risk 

r. rnukh>) 

Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 

(i) Change in Defined Benefit Obligation 
Balance at the beginning of the year 252 369 

Adjustment of: 
Current Service Cost 6 34 

Benefit paid directly by the employer (196) 

Interest Cost 5 25 

- Change in Financial Assumptions~ 0 (9) 

- Experience Changes 10 45 

Benefits Paid l85l (16) 

Balance at the end of the year 2 252 

(ii} Change in Fair value of assets 
Balance at the beginning of the year 200 152 

Expected Return on Plan Assets excluding interest income (1) 12 

Interest Income 15 11 

Contributions by the employer 2 41 

Benefits payments from plan assets (83) (16) 

Balance at the end of the year 133 200 

(iii} Net Asset/ (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sh~t 
Present value of the funded defined benefit obligation at the end of the year (2) (252) 

Fair Value of Plan Assets 133 200 

Net Asset/ (Liability) in the Balance Sheet 131 (521 

Gratuity amount recoverable from LIC (Refer Note 7) 107 
Excess funds contributed to LIC in earlier years 23 

(iv) Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit & loss 
Current Seivice Cost 6 34 

Net Interest Cost (10) 15 

Amount charged to the Statement of Profit and loss (4) 49 

(v) Re-measurements recognized In Other Comprehensive lncome(OCI): 
Ch:ingC!!i in Fin;:mci;:il J\::;!iumption::; (9) 

Experience Adjustments 45 

Actua l return on Plan assets less (17) 

interest on plan assets 
Amount recognized in Other Comprehensive lncomelOCI) 24 

(vi) Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation: 
Within the next 12 months# 0 20 

Between 1 and 5 years l 111 

Between 6 and 10 years l 126 

11 Years and above 3 198 

(vii) Sensitivity analysis for significant 
assumptions:• # 

lncrease/(Decrease) on present value of defined benefits obligation at the end 
of the year 

' " lnc:rcHu.e in dtscount r~ie (OJ (15) 
1% decrease in discount rate 0 17 
1% increase in salary escalation rate 0 17 
1% decrease in salary escalation rate (OJ (15) 
1% increase in employee turnover rate 0 1 

1 % decrease in employee turnover rate (OJ (1) 

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan: 
Insurer Managed Funds 133 200 

Actuarial ASsumptions: 
Discount Rate (p,a ,) 7.1911 7 46" 
Expected Return on Plan Assets (p_a ) 7 19% 746% 
Turnover Rate For service 4 years and bcJow For service 4 years and 

20.000A. p.a. For seivice S below 20 00% pa For 
years and above 7.00% p....a. service S years and above 

7.00% p.a. 
Mortality tables Indian Assured Ll\n! :i. Indian Assured Live, 

Morlilllty Mortality 

2012-14 (Urban) 2012-14 (U rbani 
Salary Escalation Rate (pa.) §.00% 6-00% 

Retirement age 6Q 60 

Weighted AveraRe duration of Defined benefit obliRation !vears) 11 A 



30 E"1Ployee Beneflts : (Continued) 
A Defined Benefit Plans:(Continued) 

•-'fhe sensitivity analysis have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other changes in market conditions at the year 
ef"d. There have been no changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions used ln preparlng the sensitivity analysis. 

# A,ggregate value is less than~ 0.50 lakhs 

9psis used to detennine Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets: The overall expected rate of return on assets is based on the expectation of ttie average long term rate of return 
e1'pected on investments of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations. 

sailary Escalation Rate: The past experience and industry practice considering promotion and demand and supply of employees. 

A!)Set Liability matching strategy : The money contributed by the Company to the Gratuity fund to finance the liabilities of the plan has to be invested. 
The trustees of the plan have outsourced the investment management of the fund to an insurance company. The insurance company in turn manages t.hese funds as per the mandate 
pr-ovided to them by the trustees and the asset allocation which is within the permissible limits prescribed in the insurance regulations. Due to the restrictions in the type of investments 
that can be he ld by the fund, it is not possible to explicit ly fol low an asset liability matching strategy. 
r11ere is no compulsion on the part of the Company to fully prefund the liability of the Plan The Company's philosophy is to fund these benefits based on its own liquidity and the level 
of underfundine of the clan 

The Company's expected contribution during next yea r is Rs. Nil (March 31,2023 - Rs. 62 lakhs). 

(ii) Compensated Absences: 
The liability towards compensated absences for the year ended March 31, 2024 is based on actuarial valuation carried out by using Projected Unit Credit Method amounting to Rs. 
l lakhs (March 31, 2023 - Rs. 52 lakhs) . 

a. Financial assumptions 

Particular> 
Discount Rate (pa.) 
Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.} 

b. Demographic assumptiofls: 

Parttculars 
Mortality tables 

Turnover Rate 
Leave Availment ratio 

Defined Contribution Plans: 

March 31, 2024 
7.19% 
6.00% 

March 31, 2024 
Indian As~u rcd Uve.s 

Mortollty 
2012-14 (Urban) 

20 % a nii 7 % .,, 

March 31, 2023 
7.46% 
6.00% 

March 31, 2023 
lnd lo- n As..s1.1 rod Uves 

Mortality 
2012-14 (Urban) 

20% and 7% 
2% 

Amount recognized as an expense and included in Note 23 under the head "Contribution to Provident and other Funds" of Statement of Profit and Loss is: 

(~In Laktu} 
Particular> March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Providend, Family Pension and other Funds 19 90 
Emplovees State Insurance Scheme 1 4 
Total 20 94 



31 Related Party Disclosures : 

A list of parties exercising control: 

N•m• of Rcl• ted Po.rtl., Nature of Relationship 

R.B Fitness & Trading Private limited (Cease to be w e.f. November 30, 2022} Ultimate Holding Company 

Cravatex Limited (Cease to be we f. November 30. 2022) Holdin2 Company 
Metro Brands Limited {w,e f. December 1, 2022} Holding Comnanv 

M!!!trn1l l FootYJet'lr Private Limited Fellow Subsidiarv Companv 

List of Related Parties where control exists: 

N1me of Rol1tA!d Pilrtl., N1tvrt of Refa tlonshlp 

Prolifle fJ<port> Private Limited (Cease to be w."-f. Novemb~r 30, 2022) ErHerpnses over which 

Crov l\pparnls Private Umited (Cca.se to be w.c.f. Novembi?r .30, 2022) 
Directors referred above are 

able to exercise significant 
influence 

SO Enterprise.> (Ce••• to l-e w.e,f. Ne>,ernlM!r 30, Wn) Director's relative interest 

BB UK Limited (Cease to be w.e.f. November 30, 2022) Fellow subsidiary 

Key Management Personnel/ Directors 

Mr Rajesh Batra (Cease to be w.e f , December 1, 2022) Chairman 

Mr Rohan Batra (Cease to be w.e.f . December 1, 2022) Managing Director 

Mr Sandeep Mukim (Cease to be w e.f. December 31, 2022) Chief Executive Officer 

Mr Sumeet Nindrajog (Cease to be w~e.f. December 1, 2022) Director 
Mr Nitin Lalpuria (Cease to be w.e.f. December 1, 2022) Director 
Ms Rupa Vora (Cease to be w e.f. December 1, 2022) Director 

Mr N santhanam (Cease to be w.e.f. December 1, 2022) Director 

Mr Anuj Rakhiyan (Cease to be w e.f. December 1, 2022) Director 

Mr. Nakul Toshniwal (Cease to be w.e.f December 1, 2022) Director 

Mr. Sanjay Mariwala (Cease to be w.e.f December 1, 2022) Director 

Mr. HS Devaprasad (Cease to be w.e.f. December 31, 2022) Chief Financial Officer 
Ms. Apurva Parulekar (Cease to be w.e.f. April 4, 2023) Company Secretary 
Ms. Farah Malik Bhanji (w.e f. December 1, 2022) Director 
Mr. Kaushal Parekh· Director (w.e.f. December 1, 2022), CFO (w.e.f. May 16, Director and Chief Financial 
2023) Officer 
Mr. Nissan Joseph (w.e.f. January 1, 2023) Director 
Mr. Mohammed Iqbal Hasanally Dossani (w.e.f, December 1, 2022) Whole-time Director 
Ms. Krutika Mohan Rane (w.e f. September 12, 2023) Company Secretarv 

(C) The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business: 

f't in t..okhs) 
Name of Related Parties March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023 

Rent EJ:pcnses 
Crava.[e;ic Llmneod 5 

Reimbunemcnt of cxoc nscs 

Cravatc• Limllad (51\r :iupport chnr,n:e:iJ - 21 

PurchiJse of stock In trade 

Cr11v App.,rels Pr1vute Umlted - 25 

Sales of products (net off sa l~.s rir!:lllrnl 

Metro Brands Limited 145 184 

Transfer of PPE 'other thiln l!UUuant to demerner) 

Metro Brands Limited 8 

ICD T~k2n l !Ellmlna12~ gn occount of demergor) 
Praline Exports Private limited 1,500 
Metro Brands limited 14,580 

Interest on ICO Taken 

Proline E;.cports Private Limited 36 

Metro Brands Limited 60 286 

Director SitUng fee 

Ms , Rupa Vora - 2 

Mr. N Santhanam l 

Mr. Anuj Rakhyan 1 

Mr. Nakul Toshniwal - 1 

Remuneration 

Mr.Rohan Batra - 22 

Mr Sandeep Mukim . 131 
Mr. H s Oevaprasad - 70 

Ms. Apurva Parulekar 7 



3L Related Party Disclosures : (Continued) 

(D' Outstanding balances: 
( ~In Lakhs) 

Name of R~ated Parties March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Borrowings 

Metro Brands Limited 2,311 14,580 

Trade Receivables 

Metro Brands Limited 84 110 

Other Financial assets 

Metro Brands Limited (refer note 6) 269 -

(E) Compensation of Key Management Personnel of the Company: 
('I in lakhs) 

Particulars March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023 

- Mr. Rohan Batra - 20 
- Mr. Sandeep Mukim 125 

-- Mr. H S Devaprasad 65 

- Ms. Apurva Parulekar 6 
Short Term Employee Benefits 216 

- Mr. Rohan Batra 3 
- Mr. Sandeep Mukim - 6 
- Mr. HS Devaprasad - 5 
- Ms. Apurva Parulekar 0 
Other long Terms Benefits - 14 

Payment of sitting fee to directors {refer note 31. C for details} - 5 

Total Compensation - 235 

Terms and condition of transaction with related parties : 

All related party transactions entered during the year are in ordinary course of the business and are on arm's length basis. 



Metro Athleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 
Notes to the financial statements (Continued) 

Fo( the year ended March 31, 2024 

~2 Financial Instruments: 

Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities : 

Asat 
Particulars 

March 31, 2024 

Financial assets at Amortized cost: 
Loans (Current) -
Investments 1 

Trade Receivables 413 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 121 

Other Non Current Financial Assets 11 

Other Current financial Assets 269 
Financial assets at Fair Value through P&L: 

Investment (Current) -
Total 815 
Financial liabilities at Amortized cost: 

Trade Payables 250 
Borrowings-Current 862 

Borrowings - Non-current -
Other Current Financial Liabilities -
Financial liabilities at FVTPL: 
Borrowings - Non-current 1,450 

Total 2,562 

33 Fair Value measurement: 

('{ In Lakhs) 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

1 
2,398 

106 

399 
7 

-
2,910 

1,371 
-

14,580 
3,910 

1,457 
21,318 

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction 

between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 

The Company has established the following fair value hierarchy that categorizes the values into 3 levels. The inputs to valuation techniques used to 

measure fair value of financial instruments are: 

Level 1: This hierarchy uses quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

I PuPI 7· Th1> fair 11~lu~ of financiill instrumentli that are not trJded in Jn Jctive mJri<et io determined uoing valuation tcchnique3 wh ich me:<imize th" 

use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on company specific estimates. The investment in mutual funds are valued using the 

clming Net Asset V•lue based on th" mutual ru11u >tdte111e11t> reu~lvetl IJy th~ company. If all slgnlflcam Inputs required to fair value an instrument are 

observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. 

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. 

("I: in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Asat Asat 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through profit or loss: 
Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD) - Level 3 1,450 1,457 

Total 1,450 1,457 

The management has assessed that cash and bank balances, trade payables, and other financial asset and liabilities approximate their carrying 

amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The difference represents the fair value adjustment. 

The fa ir values of the quoted units of mutual fund schemes are based on net asset value at t he reporting date. 

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values 

The fa ir value of Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD) is determined using Black and Scholes Option Pricing Method. 

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is calculated as the present value determined using forward exchange rates and interest rate 

curve of the respective currencies. 

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of the fair value hierarchy together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as 

at March 31, 2024. 

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation: 

Particulars Valuation Technique 
Significant 

unobservable inputs 

Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD) Option Pricing Method 
Equity value of the 
Company 



Metro Athleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 
Notes to the financial statements (Continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2024 

• 34 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies : 

The company's principal financial liabilities comprise of trade payables, borrowings and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance and support 

the c 0 mpany's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include Investments, Trade receivables and Other receivables, Cash and Cash Equivalents, Other Bank 

Balances that directly derive from its operations. 

The company's activites are exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's 

senior management ensures that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and 

managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives . 

Market Risk 
Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. 

The value of a financial instrument may change as a resu lt of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equ ity prices and other market changes that affect 

market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, foreign currency receivables, 

payables and borrowings. 

A Foreign Currency Risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk of impact related to fair value or future cash flows of an exposure in foreign currency, which fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. 

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the import of fila and fitness and exports of fila. 

When a derivative is entered into for the purpose of being a hedge, the Company negotiates the terms of those derivatives to match the terms of the hedged exposure. 

The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions . The Company follows established risk management policies and standard operating 

procedures. It uses derivative instruments like forwards contracts to hedge exposure to foreign currercy risk. 

Foreign Currency in lakhs 

Outstanding Foreign Currency Exposure (gross) 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

Trade Payables USO# 

#Aggregate value is less than~ 0.50 lakhs 

Foreign Currency Sensitivity on unhedged exposure: 

1% increase in foreign exchange rate will have the following impact on loss before tax: 

Particulars 
Asat 

March 31, 2024 

Trade Payables USO# 

Note: If the rate is decreased by 100 bps loss will decrease by an equal amount 

#Aggregate value is less than~ 0.50 lakhs 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

0 2 

~in Lakhs) 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

0 1 
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Metro Ath1eisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited} 
Notes to the financial statements (Continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2024 

34 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies : (Continued) 

B Credit Risk : 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to 

credit risk from from its operarting (primarily Trade Receivables), investing and financing activities including Mutual Fund Investments, Investment in Debt Securities, Bank 

Balance, Deposits with Bank, Security Deposits, Loans to Employees and other financial instruments. 

Trade Receivables : 

Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. The Company has credit evaluation policy for each customer and based on the evaluation credit limit of each 

custorrier is defined. Sales of continued operations are mainly to Reliance Group and Holding Company. 

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are derived from revenue earned from customers. Credit risk has always been managed by the Company through credit approvals, 

establi5hing credit limits and continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The 

company allows credit period ranging from 60 days to 180 days, subject to reasonableness of the receivable. There is no concentration of cusotmers and receivable amount. 

Refer note 9.2 for movement of allowance for doubtful debts 

Investments, Cash and Cash Equivalent and Bank Deposit: 

Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalent, deposits with the banks/financial institutions is generally low as the said deposits have been made with the banks/financial institutions 
who have been assigned high credit rating by international and domestic rating agencies. 

Investments of surplus funds are made only based on Investment Policy of the Company. 

C Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable price. Prudent liquidity risk management implies 

maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to meet obligations when due. The 

Company's treasury team is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior 
management. Management monitors the Company's liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. 

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments. 

As at March 31, 2024 Carrying Value 

Non derivative financial liability: 

Trade Payables l!>U 

Borrowings 2,312 

As at March 31, 2023 Carrying Value 

Trade Payables 2,068 
Borrowings 16,037 
Other Financial Liabilities 3,254 

35 Capital Management : 

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to 

(a} maximise shareholder value and provide benefits to other stakeholders and 

(b) maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 

Lt:» l11d111 y.,d, 

250 
862 

Less than 1 Year 

2,068 
-

3,254 

(~in La khs} 
Contractual values 

l lu !I y.,~rs More than 5 Years lotal 

- - 250 
1,450 - 2,312 

(~In lakhs) 

Contractual values 
1to5 Years More than 5 Years Total 

- - 2,068 
14,580 1,457 16,037 

- - 3,254 

For the purposes of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders . 

The Company monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is total debt and bank deposits less investments divided by total equity. 

{ ~ in Lakhs) 

Particulars 
Asat Asat 

March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023 
Total Debt (Bank and other borrowings) 2,312 16,037 
Total Equity (536) (5,832) 
Liquid Investments including bank deposits 121 106 
Debt to Equity (Net) (4.09) (2.73) 

The Holding Company has given continuous financial support to the Company for meeting its working capital requirements. 
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Metro Athleisure Limited {Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 
Notes to the financial statements (Continued) 

For the year ended March 31, 2024 

36 Leases 
The company has taken on lease retail stores, office premises and warehouses. The lease 

typically run for the period between 12 month to 60 months. 

Information about leases for which the company is lessee is presented below: 

A. Right of use assets 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,683 

Transfer pursuant to demerger (1,427) 

Additions . 
Depreciation expense -
Disposal I Derecognized during the year (256) 

Balance at the end of the year -

B Lease liabilities 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,978 

Transfer pursuant to demerger (1,653) 

Addition -
Accreditation of interest -
Payments (SJ 

Adjustments for Disposals (319) 

Balance at the end of the year . 
Current -
Non-current -

C Amounts recognised in profit and loss 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2024 

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets -
Interest expense on lease liabilities -
Expense towards short term lease and lease for low value assets 8 
Total 8 

D Maturity Analysis of Lease Liability 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

1 year or less -
1-2 years . 
2-5 years -

More than 5 vears -
CarryinR Amount -

E A . d. mount reco1m1se in statement o cas h fl ows 

Particulars 
As at 

March 31, 2024 

Total cash outflow for leases s 

{"!in Lakhs) 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

2,112 
. 
836 

(813) 
(451) 

1,683 

(" in Lakhs) 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

2,451 

. 
305 

1,065 
(287) 

1,978 
656 

1,321 

("in Lakhs) 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

813 
305 

-
1,118 

(" in Lakhs) 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

656 
475 
776 

70 

1,977 

('{ . L kh ) m a s 
As at 

March 31, 2023 
1,065 



Metro Athleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 
Notes to the fi riancial statements (Continued) 

For the year e(lded March 31, 2024 

37 Revenue from contract with customer 

f A Disaggn.~sation of revenue 
FollowinB table provides disaggregation of revenue 

Fm the \! oar anded March 31,. 2024 

Portlcul•rs 
"FILA" 

(Refer Note 401 
Revenue from Operation 

To-t:al revenue from contract with customers 

For the voar ended March 31, l023 

Portlculars 
"ALA" 

(Refer Note 391 
Revenue from Operation 

Total revenue from contract with customers 

B Sign ifiCilrrt' chant?es in contran ll;:ibllitie.s durinl! the voar: 

Portlculars 

Deferred revenue as on 1st April 2023 

9,616 

9,616 

Less: revenue recognised that was included in the contract li abil ity balance at the 
beginninB of the year 

Add: revenue trans ferred unearned revenue 

Deferred revenue as on 31st March 2024 

VANS 

308 

308 

VANS 

709 

709 

For the year ended Mirth 
31,l024 

-

C Reconciliation of the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price: 

Particulars For the year ended March 
31, 2024 

Revenue as per contracted price 2,245 
Adjustments 

Sales return {Incl provision for sales return) 207 
Discounts 741 

Revenue from contract with customers (for Continued Operations] 1,296 

38 Segment Reporting 

(~ In La h~l 

Rtness Prollne Total 

988 1,296 

988 1,296 

0 

Rtness Prollne Total 

664 3,705 14,695 

664 3 705 14,695 

in La kh) ' For the year ended 
March 31. 2D23 

40 
(40) 

-

I~ In L.akh'J 
For the year ended 

March 31. 2023 
11,196 

3,377 
2.740 
5.079 

The Company's only Business been trading of fashion footwear, apparels and accessories operation in the premium and economy category, which in terms of IND AS 108 'Operation Segments' 

constitutes a single reporting segment Further, there is no geographical segment to be reported since all the operations are undertaken in India. 

39 Discontinued Operations: 

In the previous year, the Board of Directors at its meeting dated 21 March 2023 had approved a Scheme of Arrangement for Demerger wherein the assets, liabilities and business of importing, trading, selling, 

mnrketine-, ;irtvP.rtio;inf, rPtniline ;inrl rli<trih11tinn nf fnntin.;ou, 111r.r.•rlill ind ittilnoriu und11u th() licom:od brJnd "Fil/\" in India, 11alli.=iton, ~ri Lanha, Oanglodc:ih, ~Jcpol ond Ohutl!ll1 will Le Jc111~1~~t.l r1ur11 lllt! 

Company to Metro Brands limited (Holding company). 

Revenue cind npenses relating tn 1fr•;rontin11Prl npPr~tinno; is 1'J follows: 

Results of Discontinued O.oeratlon !~in ll>kh•I 

Partlcul1rs For the ye1r ended 
March 31. 2024 

Discontinued operations 

Income 

Revenue from operations 9,616 
Other Income 299 
Total Income 9,915 

Expenses 

Purchase of stock-in-trade 6,511 
Change in Inventories of stock-in-trade (7291 
Employee benefits expense 1,292 
Finance costs 1,334 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,706 
Other expenses 5.536 
Total expenses 15,650 

Loss before tax (5,735) 
Gain from sale of discontinued operations 

Tax credit /(expense) 

loss after tax (5,735) 
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Metro Athleisure Limited (Formerly known as Cravatex Brands Limited) 
Notes to the financial statements (Continued) 

For the Year ended March 31, 2024 
40 Scheme of ilrrangement 

Pursoant to the Scheme of arrangement ("the Scheme"), approved by the Hon'ble National Company law Tribunal, Mumbai bench, vide its order dated March 14, 2024, the Company has demerged its "Fil.A" bllsiness 
undertaking to Metro Brands ltd (Holding Company), on a going concern ba ~is , at carrying value as appearing in the books of the Company on the appointed date i e April 1, 2023 as under and the accounting entries are 

recorded in the books of accounts as per the Scheme. Accordingly, figures for the current ye.lr .lre not compcir.lble with the previous year figures 

Particutars 

Assets: 
Non-Current assets (including Goodwill) 

Current assets 
Total As.sets (A) 

liabilities: 
Non-Current liabililie:s 

Current ltabilitie~ 
Total Liabilities (B) 

Excess of li1bilities ov@r Assets (Recorded as a part or retaine-d Hrninrsl 

41 Ratfo-:s 

Rotlo Numenitor Oenomln.tot 

(a) Current Ratio Total current usets Total Current Liabilities 

(b} Debt-Equity Ratio Total Borrowings Total Equity 

inclding current and non 

current lease liabilities 

lc'J Debt Ser.iict1 Earnings a\lailable fo r Principal + interest repayment of 

Co11erali!e Ratio debt ser.iicinli!. loan 

tdJ Return on Equity Profit for the year (PAn Tot.al Equity 

flalio 
fel Inventory lurnover Cost of Good Sold 

ratio 
(~ Tr.ade Recei11able~ Re11enue 

turnover ratio ooer;11lions 

Average ln11entory 

from Average Trade receivables 

lid Trade payable!. Purchase of stock in Average Trade payables 
turnover ratio trade 

lh] Net capital turnover Re11enue 

ratio ooerations 

from TDtl'l1 ( utton1 w'-~f!' l') lil"\11 tot1I CU.ITI!flt 

liat:illt ln-

tlJ Net profit ratio Profit for the year (PAll Net sales 

UI Return on Capital Eaming before interes\ Capital employed 

employed ;md tax, arrived b\I 

t1dding back Fin<1nct: 

co.t.1 to n n f' rofl\ be1 rprr:i 

11 .. 1rnrn 

investment 

(kl Return 0•1

1 

lncome from in\lested Average runds in\lested 

funds including fail 

valuation 

Asot 
March 31. 2024 

Times/" 

TI mes 

nm es 

nm es 

% 

nm es 

nm es 

TI mes 

nm es 

% 

% 

% 

3,960 

8344 

12,304 

15,263 

.1.954 

18,218 

(S.914) 

Note: The numerator and denominator are changed wherever required to give a more ;ippropriate analysis of the ratios 

For th• 'IHr ended For tfle ye1r ended 

~rm 31. 2024 M1rdt n. 2023 
Vart.nCll! 

1.71 2.08 -17 .7% 

(4 31) (3 09) 39,6% 

(0_25 ) (0.261 -60% 

1,lS 138 -163% 

0.94 192 -508% 

0.92 1-86 -50.5% 

0.46 326 -85.8% 

1.52 2.05 -25 9% 

(048) (0.55) -12 .7% 

(0_29) (0.63) -54.8% 

NA NA NA 

42 There are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 

thereunder 

-43 The Company ha s not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority 

44 The Company h.ls not entered into any tran~aclions with struck off companies as per sec lion 2"18 of lhe Companies A<.t, 2013 . 

45 There is no delay in crea1ion or satisfaction of charge which has been registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC) during the year, 

46 The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Reslricrion on number of layers) Rules, 2017, 

47 The Comp.lny has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year~ 

48 The Company does not h.ave any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accountsthat h.ais been surrendered or disclosed .as income durins the ye.ar in the tax assessments 

under the Income T.ax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevcint provisions of the Income Tu Act, 196L 

49 (A) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary 
shall: 

(a) Directly or indlrectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) Provide any suarantee, security or the like 10 or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(Bl The Company hcis not received any rund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that 
the Compcmy shall: 

(a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of !he Funding Party (Uhimate Beneficiaries) or 

(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimale Beneficiaries 

SO The Companies Act, 2013 has formulated Section 135, Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules. 2014 and Schedule VII which prescribes mandatory provisions for Companies to fulfill 

their Corporate Social Responsibility. The provisions of this section are applicable to profit making entities only As the entity Is a loss making Company, provisions of CSR would not be 
applicable ro ir 

As per our report of even attached. 

For and on behalr of the Board of Directors 

~planation for vart~tton by 

more th•n 25" 

Rerer note 40 of Financial 

Statement On accollnt of 

demerger the ratios are not 
comnarable. 

As fb) above 

As !b) abo11e. 

As (b) above , 

As (b) abo11e, 

As (b) above, 

NA 

For N. A. Shah Associates LLP 
Charterrd Accountants Metro Athleisure limited (Formerly known ilS CravateJI Brands limited) 

~:~cc> ~ 2 
Bhavin Kapadia 
Partner 

Membership No: 118991 

Mumbai 

Dated: May 20, 2024 
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Dated: M<ly 20, 2024 
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